UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME Office of Audit and Investigations



AUDIT

OF

UNDP TURKEY

TURKEY RESILIENCE PROJECT IN RESPONSE TO THE SYRIA CRISIS
(Nationally Implemented Project No. 108446, Output Nos. 108275 and
108276)

Report No. 2262

Issue Date: 28 July 2020



Report on the Audit of UNDP Turkey Turkey Resilience Project in Response to the Syria Crisis (Project No. 108446, Output Nos. 108275 and 108276) Executive Summary

The UNDP Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI), through KPMG SA (the audit firm), from 2 to 30 June 2020 conducted an audit of Turkey Resilience Project in Response to the Syria Crisis, Project No. 108446, Output Nos. 108275 and 108276 (the Project), which is nationally implemented with support services provided by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey (the Office). This was the first audit of the Project.

The audit firm conducted a financial audit in accordance with the International Standards of Auditing (ISA), the 700 series, to express an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the Project's operations. The audit covered the Project's Combined Delivery Report, which includes expenses for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 and the accompanying Funds Utilization statement² as of 31 December 2019 as well as Statement of Assets for Output No. 108275 as of 31 December 2019.

The audit did not include activities and expenses incurred or undertaken at the "responsible party" level, or expenses processed and approved in locations outside of the country (such as UNDP Regional Centres and UNDP Headquarters). The audit did not cover the Statement of Assets for Output No. 108276 as no assets were procured using the Output's funds. In addition, the audit did not cover the Statement of Cash Position as no separate bank account was established and maintained for the Project.

The audit was conducted under the general supervision of OAI in conformance with the *International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing*.

Audit results

Based on the audit reports submitted by the audit firm, the results are summarized in the table below:

Output No.	Project Ex	cpenses	Project	Assets
	Amount Opinion (in \$ '000)		Amount (in \$'000)	Opinion
108275	10,161*	Unmodified	44	Unmodified
108276	3,025**	Unmodified	N/A	N/A

^{*} Expenses recorded in the Combined Delivery Report were \$10,423,630. Excluded from the audit scope were transactions that relate to expenses processed and approved by other UNDP offices outside of the country (\$62,730). Also excluded were expenses incurred at the "responsible party" level (\$200,000), which were subject to a separate audit conducted by external auditors that resulted in an unmodified opinion.

_

¹ The responsible units in UNDP facilitate the audits of nationally implemented (NIM) projects. However, this NIM project was audited by OAI due to the significant involvement of the Country Office in its implementation, and the subsequent materiality of the amount expensed by UNDP.

² The Funds Utilization statement includes the balance, as at a given date, of five items: (a) outstanding advances received by the project; (b) undepreciated fixed assets used at the project level; (c) inventory held at the project level; (d) prepayments made by the project; and (e) outstanding commitments held at the project level.

United Nations Development Programme Office of Audit and Investigations



** Expenses recorded in the Combined Delivery Report were \$8,294,855. Excluded from the audit scope were transactions that relate to expenses processed and approved by other UNDP offices outside of the country (\$25,092). Also excluded were expenses incurred at the "responsible party" level (\$5,244,509), which were subject to a separate audit conducted by external auditors that resulted in an unmodified opinion.

The audit did not result in any recommendations.

Management comments and action plan

Comments and/or additional information provided have been incorporated into the report, where appropriate.

Moncel Ghrib

Moncef Ghrib Officer-in-Charge Office of Audit and Investigations



Report of the Independent Auditor on
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)
National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP
Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the
Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108276
"Adult Language Training (C3)"
— Ankara, Turkey —
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108276
"Adult Language Training (C3)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive S	ummary	2
Audit Obje	ctives and Scope	3
Independen	t Auditors' Report:	
	Financial Position	4
Annex:		
Annex 1:	Combined Delivery Report and Funds Utilization Statement –	6
	Output ID 00108276 (USD)	



KPMG SA Audit Western Switzerland Esplanade de Pont-Rouge 6 CH-1212 Grand-Lancy

PO Box 1571 CH-1211 Geneva 26 T +41 58 249 25 15 E infogeneva@kpmg.com

Executive Summary

KPMG Geneva conducted the financial audit of UNDP Project Id 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108276 "Adult Language Training (C3)", for which UNDP Turkey provides direct and significant support in its implementation, for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019. The audit was undertaken on behalf of the Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI) United Nations Development Programme (UNDP).

We have issued audit opinions as summarized in the table below and as detailed in the next section:

Financial Position	Unmodified
Statement of Fixed Assets	Not Applicable because the project did not have any fixed assets.
Statement of Cash	Not Applicable because the project did not have a separate bank account.

There were no reportable findings with a medium or high priority rating and consequently we do not issue a management letter.

The Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108276 "Adult Language Training (C3)", was not audited in the prior year and therefore no recommendations to follow up on.

KPMG SA

Pierre-Henri Pingeon *Partner*

Henri Mwaniki Senior Manager

Geneva, 21 July 2020



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108276

"Adult Language Training (C3)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Audit Objectives and Scope

The objective of the financial audit was to express an opinion on the project financial position which includes:

- Expressing an opinion on whether the financial expenses incurred by the project over a specified period as well as the Fund Utilization statement, the accounts receivable and the accounts payable as at the end of a specified period are fairly presented in accordance with UNDP accounting policies and that the expenses incurred were: (i) in conformity with the approved project budgets; (ii) for the approved purposes of the project; (iii) in compliance with the relevant regulations and rules, policies and procedures of UNDP; and (iv) supported by properly approved vouchers and other supporting documents.
- Expressing an opinion on whether the Statement of Fixed Assets, at Net Book Value, presents fairly the balance of depreciated assets of the UNDP project as at 31 December 2019. This Statement must include all assets available as at 31 December 2019 and not only those purchased in a given period. The opinion is rendered on the Net Book value balance of the Assets. Where a project does not have any assets or equipment, it will not be necessary to express such an opinion.
- Expressing an opinion on whether the Statement of Cash held by the project presents fairly the cash and bank balance of the project as at 31 December 2019. Disbursements made against a project are usually financed from regular country office bank accounts. Exceptionally, a dedicated account may be opened and used solely for the cash transactions of a project, e.g. if the project is in a remote location. The audit firm is required to express an opinion on the Statement of Cash only where a dedicated bank account for the project has been established. In cases where the cash transactions of the audited project are made through the country office bank accounts this type of opinion is not required.
- As applicable, provide the progress made in implementing the recommendations raised in a previous year audit report.

The Financial Audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Auditing (ISA), the 700 series.

The scope of the audit relates only to transactions concluded and recorded against the UNDP project, between 1 January and 31 December 2019. The scope of the audit did not include:

- Activities and expenses incurred or undertaken at the level of "responsible parties", unless the inclusion of these expenses is specifically required in the request for proposal; and
- Expenses processed and approved in locations outside the country such as UNDP Regional Centres and UNDP Headquarters and where the supporting documentation is not retained at the level of the UNDP country office.



KPMG SA Audit Western Switzerland Esplanade de Pont-Rouge 6 CH-1212 Grand-Lancy

PO Box 1571 CH-1211 Geneva 26 T +41 58 249 25 15 E infogeneva@kpmg.com

Independent Auditors' Report

Opinion on Financial Position

To: The Director of the Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI)
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)

We have audited the financial position of the UNDP Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108276 "Adult Language Training (C3)" for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 which includes: (a) the accompanying Combined Delivery Report (CDR); (b) the Funds Utilization Statement ("The Statement"); and (c) the project related accounts receivable and accounts payable.

The CDR expenditure totaling USD 8,294,855.37 is comprised of expenditure directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey for an amount of USD 3,025,254.38 and expenditure incurred by entities other than the Country Office for an amount of USD 5,269,600.99. Our audit only covered the expenditure directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey of USD 3,025,254.38.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, the attached CDR and Funds Utilization statement present fairly, in all material respects, the expenses of USD 3,025,254.38 directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey and charged to the project for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 in accordance with UNDP accounting policies, and were: (i) in conformity with the approved project budgets; (ii) for the approved purposes of the project; (iii) in compliance with the relevant regulations and rules, policies and procedures of UNDP; and (iv) supported by properly approved vouchers and other supporting documents.

Basis for unmodified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the CDR and Funds Utilization section of our report. We are independent of UNDP in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with this code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Management responsibilities

Management is responsible for the preparation of the CDR and the Funds Utilization statement of the project, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a CDR and Funds Utilization statement that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108276

"Adult Language Training (C3)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the CDR and the Funds Utilization statement are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these documents.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the CDR and Funds Utilization statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG SA

Pierre-Henri Pingeon *Partner*

Henri Mwaniki Senior Manager

Geneva, 21 July 2020

Annex:

Annex 1: Combined Delivery Report and Funds Utilization Statement – Output ID 00108276 (USD)

DP UN Development Programme

Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 1 of 5

Run Time: 14-02-2020 08:02:08

46.16

197.94

395.87

33.02

184.72

108.12

1,312.88

41,831.58

171,018.95

13,177.10

219.20

758.25

599.86

546.15

2,081.63

1,098.87

1,611.10

75.89 6,295.01

6.56

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit: TUR10 Period:

Jan-Dec (2019)

63540 - Contribution to Training

63550 - Contributions to MAIP

63555 - Contribution to UN JFA

71360 - Local Consult-Security

71410 - MAIP Premium SC

63560 - Contributions to Appendix D 64310 - Separations - IP Staff

65115 - Contributions to ASHI Reserve

71305 - Local Consult.-Sht Term-Tech

71405 - Service Contracts-Individuals

71505 - UN Volunteers-Stipend & Allow 71510 - UNV Settling-In-Grant

71541 - UNVs-Contribution to security

71550 - UNV-Resettlement Allowance

71415 - Contribution to Security SC

71520 - UNV-Language Allowance 71535 - UNV-Medical Insurance

71540 - UNV-Global Charges

65135 - Payroll Mgt Cost Recovery ATLA

63545 - Contribution to ICT

Selected Project Id:

00108446

Selected Fund Code :

30079

Selected Dept. IDs:

ALL

Selected Outputs:

00108276

	Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian Output #: 00108276 Adult Language Training(C3)		Period : Impl. Partner : Location :	Jan-Dec (2019) 03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem UNDP-TURKEY	
	G	ovt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
Dept: 57801 (Turkey - Central)			lul .		
Fund: 30079 (EUROPEAN COMMIS	SION)				
71615 - Daily Subsistence Allo 75105 - Facilities & Admin - Im		0.00	1,618.80 113.32	0.00 0.00	1,618.80 113.32
Total for Fund 30079		0.00	1,732.12 🦤	0.00	1,732.12
Total for Dept: 57801		0.00	1,732.12	0.00	1,732.12
Dept: 57810 (Turkey - Finance)					
Fund: 30079 (EUROPEAN COMMIS	SION)				
61305 - Salaries - IP Staff 61310 - Post Adjustment - IP S 62305 - Dependency Allowand 62310 - Contrib to Jt Staff Per 62315 - Contrib. to medical, so 62320 - Mobility, Hardship, No 62340 - Annual Leave Expens 63330 - Ed Grt Incl Trvl&Allow 63335 - Home Leave Trvl & Al 63350 - Reimb of Income Tax 63530 - Contribution to EOS E 63535 - Contribution to Securi	ces-IP Staff as Fd-IP ocial in on-remova ee - IPIP Stf low-IP Staff Benefits	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0	11,579.48 1,615.18 1,173.83 4,051.74 425.90 1,060.13 -777.25 1,747.20 294.00 593.73 494.76 547.56	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	11,579.48 1,615.18 1,173.83 4,051.74 425.90 1,060.13 -777.25 1,747.20 294.00 593.73 494.76 547.56

46.16

197.94

395.87

33.02

184.72

108.12

1,312.88

41,831.58

171,018.95

1,611.10

6,295.01

13,177.10

219.20 758.25

599.86

546.15

1,098.87

2,081.63

75.89

6.56

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

UN Development Programme
Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 2 of 5 Run Time: 14-02-2020 08:02:08

Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian Output #: 00108276 Adult Language Training(C3) Period : Impl. Partner : Location : Jan-Dec (2019) 03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem UNDP-TURKEY **Govt Exp UNDP** Exp **UN Agencies Exp** Total Exp

71565 - UNV-Natl Appoint/Sep incl Tryl	0.00	400.00		*
71591 - UNV_Cost_Recovery_Deployment	0.00 0.00	109.36	0.00	109.36
71592 - UNV_COST_RECOVERY_RECURR	RING 0.00	2,194.50	0.00	2,194.50
71605 - Travel Tickets-International	0.00	2,307.11	0.00	2,307.11
71610 - Travel Tickets-Local	919.91	9,549.21	0.00	9,549.21
71615 - Daily Subsistence Allow-Intl	0.00	2,540.89	0.00	3,460.80
71620 - Daily Subsistence Allow-Local	925.85	36,723.48	0.00	36,723.48
71630 - Shipment	0.00	1,929.90	0.00	2,855.75
71635 - Travel - Other	0.00	63,222.26	0.00	63,222.26
71810 - Contractual Svcs-indiv.lmpPthr	148,294.68	11,303.64	0.00	11,303.64
72105 - Svc Co-Construction & Engineer	0.00	51,098.06	0.00	199,392.74
72135 - Svc Co-Communications Service	8,741.01	23,416.54	0.00	23,416.54
72140 - Svc Co-Information Technology	0.00	13,533.43 246.91	0.00	22,274.44
72145 - Svc Co-Training and Educ Serv	735,554.17	391.420.32	0.00	246.91
72160 - Svc Co-Education & Health Serv	47,083.76	62,543.16	0.00	1,126,974.49
72170 - Svc Co-Humanitarian Aid & Relf	1,315,601.35	598,581.07	0.00	109,626.92
72210 - Machinery and Equipment	0.00	117.635.22	0.00	1,914,182.42
72220 - Furniture	0.00	222.905.31	0.00	117,635.22
72399 - Other Materials and Goods	0.00	95.956.48	0.00	222,905.31
72401 - Prefab structure/other buildin	0.00		0.00	95,956.48
72405 - Acquisition of Communic Equip	0.00	238,550.00 745,865.36	0.00	238,550.00
72410 - Acquisition of Audio Visual Eq	0.00	131,721.41	0.00	745,865.36
72415 - Courier Charges	0.00	16.559.41	0.00	131,721.41
72420 - Land Telephone Charges	333.05	159.76	0.00	16,559.41
72425 - Mobile Telephone Charges	0.00	144.05	0.00	492.81
72435 - E-mail-Subscription	0.00	61.88	0.00	144.05
72445 - Common Services-Communications	0.00	10.677.93	0.00	61.88
72505 - Stationery & other Office Supp	19,510.78	16,558.89	0.00	10,677.93
72515 - Print Media	0.00	526.51	0.00 0.00	36,069.67
72615 - Micro Capital Grants-Other	91,439,77	- 91.439.77	0.00	526.51
72810 - Acquis of Computer Software	0.00	526.045.73	0.00	0.00
72815 - Inform Technology Supplies	836.826.19	204,724.14	0.00	526,045.73
73105 - Rent	2,488.60	4.492.13	0.00	1,041,550.33
73120 - Utilities	918.74	8.106.97	0.00	6,980.73
73125 - Common Services-Premises	0.00	5,362.50	0.00	9,025.71
73310 - Maint & Licencing of Software	0.00	6,821.93	0.00	5,362.50
73405 - Rental & Maint-Other Office Eq.	0.00	53.06	0.00	6,821.93
73410 - Maint, Oper of Transport Equip	0.00	113.63	0.00	53.06
73420 - Leased Vehicles	0.00	963.83	0.00	113.63
74110 - Audit Fees	0.00	8.290.00	0.00	963.83
74205 - Audio Visual Productions	0.00	2,180.76	0.00	8,290.00
74210 - Printing and Publications	0.00	27.761.46	0.00	2,180.76
74215 - Promotional Materials and Dist	0.00	7.532.25	0.00	27,761.46
74220 - Translation Costs	0.00	1,234.42	0.00	7,532.25
74225 - Other Media Costs	0.00	2,007.27	0.00	1,234.42
74505 - Insurance	0.00	180.59	0.00	2,007.27
74525 - Sundry	0.00	117.99	0.00	180.59
74596 - Services to projects -GOE	0.00	36,413.02	0.00	117.99
74720 - Distribution Cost	0.00	11.054.50	0.00	36,413.02
75105 - Facilities & Admin - Implement	0.00	523.211.21	0.00	11,054.50
75705 - Learning costs	43.09	370,233,51	0.00	523,211.21
75706 - Learning - ticket costs	0.00	1,067.48	0.00	370,276.60
76120 - Unrealized Loss	0.00	457.766.59	0.00	1,067.48
76125 - Realized Loss	0.00	26.07	0.00	457,766.59
		_0.07	0.00	26.07

DIP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 3 of 5 Run Time: 14-02-2020 08:02:08

Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian Output #: 00108276 Adult Language Training(C3)		Period : Impl. Partner : Location :	Jan-Dec (2019) 03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem UNDP-TURKEY	
	Govt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
76130 - Unrealized Gain 76135 - Realized Gain	0.00 0.00	- 156,611.97 - 5,714.17	0.00 0.00	- 156,611.97 - 5,714.17
Total for Fund 30079	3,208,680.95	5,084,442.30	0.00	8,293,123.25
Total for Dept: 57810	3,208,680.95	5,084,442.30	0.00	8,293,123.25
Total for Output: 00108276	3,208,680.95	5,086,174.42	0.00	8,294,855.37
Project Total :	3,208,680.95	5,086,174.42	0.00	8,294,855.37

Pierre-Henri Pingeon, Partner KPMG SA, Geneva 21 July 2020

Henri Mwaniki, Senior Manager KPMG SA, Geneva 21 July 2020

Sukhrob Khojimatov

Signed By:

Signed By:

Date:

Date:

Mehmet YILMAZ Daire Baskanı

UN Development Programme
Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 4 of 5 Run Time: 14-02-2020 08:02:08

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit: TUR10
Period: Jan-Dec (2019)
Selected Project Id: 00108446
Selected Fund Code: 30079
Selected Dept. IDs: ALL
Selected Outputs: 00108276

Project Id: ALL Output #: ALL		Period : Impl. Partner : Location :	Jan-Dec (2019)	e de
	Govt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
57801 - Turkey - Central 57810 - Turkey - Finance	0.00 3,208,680.95	1,732.12 5,084,442.30	0.00 0.00	1,732.12 8,293,123.25

DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 5 of 5 Run Time: 14-02-2020 08:02:12

Funds Utilization

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit : TUR10

Period: Jan-Dec (2019)
Selected Project Id: 00108446
Selected Fund Code: 30079
Selected Dept. IDs: ALL
Selected Outputs: 00108276

Project/Award: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian

Period: As at Dec 31, 2019

Output# 00108276 impl. Partner :03100 GOVT a	UNDP AMOUNT	
Outstanding NEX advances		0.00
Undepreciated Fixed Assets		0.00
Unamortized Intangible Assets	-A	0.00
Inventory		0.00
Prepayments		0.00
Commitments		342,002.35





Report of the Independent Auditor on
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)
National Implemented (NIM) Project –
with support services provided by UNDP
Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the
Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275
"Municipal Service Delivery (C2)"
- Ankara, Turkey For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108275
"Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive S	ummary	2
Audit Objec	ctives and Scope	3
Independen	t Auditors' Report:	
	Financial Position	4
	Statement of Fixed Assets	6
Annexes:		
Annex 1:	Combined Delivery Report and Funds Utilization Statement – Output ID 00108275 (USD)	8
Annex 2:	Statement of Fixed Assets	14



KPMG SA Audit Western Switzerland Esplanade de Pont-Rouge 6 CH-1212 Grand-Lancy

PO Box 1571 CH-1211 Geneva 26 T +41 58 249 25 15 E infogeneva@kpmg.com

Executive Summary

KPMG Geneva conducted the financial audit of UNDP Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275 "Municipal Service Delivery (C2)", for which UNDP Turkey provides direct and significant support in its implementation, for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019. The audit was undertaken on behalf of the Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI) United Nations Development Programme (UNDP).

We have issued audit opinions as summarized in the table below and as detailed in the next section:

Financial Position Statement of Fixed Assets Statement of Cash Unmodified Unmodified Not Applicable because the project did not have a separate bank account.

There were no reportable findings with a medium or high priority rating and consequently we do not issue a management letter.

The Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275 "Municipal Service Delivery (C2)", was not audited in the prior year and therefore no recommendations to follow up on.

KPMG SA

Pierre-Henri Pingeon *Partner*

Henri Mwaniki Senior Manager

Geneva, 21 July 2020



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108275
"Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Audit Objectives and Scope

The objective of the financial audit was to express an opinion on the project financial position which includes:

- Expressing an opinion on whether the financial expenses incurred by the project over a specified period as well as the Fund Utilization statement, the accounts receivable and the accounts payable as at the end of a specified period are fairly presented in accordance with UNDP accounting policies and that the expenses incurred were: (i) in conformity with the approved project budgets; (ii) for the approved purposes of the project; (iii) in compliance with the relevant regulations and rules, policies and procedures of UNDP; and (iv) supported by properly approved vouchers and other supporting documents.
- Expressing an opinion on whether the Statement of Fixed Assets, at Net Book Value, presents fairly the balance of depreciated assets of the UNDP project as at 31 December 2019. This Statement must include all assets available as at 31 December 2019 and not only those purchased in a given period. The opinion is rendered on the Net Book value balance of the Assets. Where a project does not have any assets or equipment, it will not be necessary to express such an opinion.
- Expressing an opinion on whether the Statement of Cash held by the project presents fairly the cash and bank balance of the project as at 31 December 2019. Disbursements made against a project are usually financed from regular country office bank accounts. Exceptionally, a dedicated account may be opened and used solely for the cash transactions of a project, e.g. if the project is in a remote location. The audit firm is required to express an opinion on the Statement of Cash only where a dedicated bank account for the project has been established. In cases where the cash transactions of the audited project are made through the country office bank accounts this type of opinion is not required.
- As applicable, provide the progress made in implementing the recommendations raised in previous year audit report.

The Financial Audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Auditing (ISA), the 700 series.

The scope of the audit relates only to transactions concluded and recorded against the UNDP project, between 1 January and 31 December 2019. The scope of the audit did not include:

- Activities and expenses incurred or undertaken at the level of "responsible parties", unless the
 inclusion of these expenses is specifically required in the request for proposal; and
- Expenses processed and approved in locations outside the country such as UNDP Regional Centres and UNDP Headquarters and where the supporting documentation is not retained at the level of the UNDP country office.



KPMG SA Audit Western SwitzerlandEsplanade de Pont-Rouge 6

Esplanade de Pont-Rouge 6 PO Box 1571 CH-1212 Grand-Lancy CH-1211 Geneva 26 T +41 58 249 25 15 E infogeneva@kpmg.com

Independent Auditors' Report

Opinion on Financial Position

To: The Director of the Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI)
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)

We have audited the financial position of the UNDP Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275 "Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 which includes: (a) the accompanying Combined Delivery Report (CDR); (b) the Funds Utilization Statement ("The Statement"); and (c) the project related accounts receivable and accounts payable.

The CDR expenditure totaling USD 10,423,630.41, is comprised of expenditure directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey for an amount of USD 10,160,900.86 and expenditure incurred by entities other than the Country Office for an amount of USD 262,729.55. Our audit only covered the expenditure directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey of USD 10,160,900.86.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, the attached CDR and Funds Utilization statement present fairly, in all material respects, the expenses of USD 10,160,900.86 directly incurred by the UNDP Country Office in Turkey and charged to the project for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019 in accordance with UNDP accounting policies and were: (i) in conformity with the approved project budgets; (ii) for the approved purposes of the project; (iii) in compliance with the relevant regulations and rules, policies and procedures of UNDP; and (iv) supported by properly approved vouchers and other supporting documents.

Basis for unmodified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the CDR and Funds Utilization section of our report. We are independent of UNDP in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with this code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Management responsibilities

Management is responsible for the preparation of the CDR and the Funds Utilization statement of the project, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a CDR and Funds Utilization statement that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108275
"Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the CDR and the Funds Utilization statement are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these documents.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the CDR and Funds Utilization statement,
 whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
 obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
 of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
 error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
 override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG SA

Pierre-Henri Pingeon *Partner*

Henri Mwaniki Senior Manager

Geneva, 21 July 2020



KPMG SA Audit Western Switzerland Esplanade de Pont-Rouge 6 CH-1212 Grand-Lancy

uge 6 PO Box 1571 CH-1211 Geneva 26 T +41 58 249 25 15 E infogeneva@kpmg.com

Independent Auditors' Report

Statement of Fixed Assets

To: The Director of the Office of Audit and Investigations (OAI), United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)

We have audited the accompanying statement of fixed assets of the UNDP Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275 "Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" as at 31 December 2019.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying statement of fixed assets presents fairly, in all material respects, the assets status of the UNDP Project ID 00108446 "Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" – Output ID 00108275 "Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" amounting to USD 44,188.82 as at 31 December 2019 in accordance with UNDP accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the statement of fixed assets. We are independent of UNDP in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with this code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management responsibilities

Management is responsible for the preparation of the statement of fixed assets of the project, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a statement of fixed assets that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the statement of fixed assets is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these documents.



Report of the Independent Auditor on the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) National Implemented (NIM) Project —
with support services provided by UNDP — Project ID 00108446
"Turkey Resilience Project in response to the Syria Crisis" — Output ID 00108275
"Municipal Service Delivery (C2)" - Ankara, Turkey
For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2019

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement of fixed assets, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG SA

Pierre-Henri Pingeon *Partner*

Henri Mwaniki Senior Manager

Geneva, 21 July 2020

Annexes:

Annex 1: Combined Delivery Report and Funds Utilization Statement – Output ID 00108275 (USD)

DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 1 of 5 Run Time: 07-02-2020 20:02:56

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit: TUR10
Period: Jan-Dec (2019)
Selected Project Id: 00108446
Selected Fund Code: ALL
Selected Dept. IDs: ALL
Selected Outputs: 00108275 Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian

Output #: 00108275 Municipal Service Delivery		Impl. Partner : Location :	03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem UNDP-TURKEY	
	Govt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
Dept: 57801 (Turkey - Central)				*
Fund: 30079 (EUROPEAN COMMISSION)				
71605 - Travel Tickets-International	0.00	254.14	0.00	254.14
71615 - Daily Subsistence Allow-Intl	0.00	2,677.32	0.00	2,677.32
71635 - Travel - Other	0.00	328.98	0.00	328.98
75105 - Facilities & Admin - Implement	0.00	228.24	0.00	228.24
Total for Fund 30079	0.00	3,488.68	0.00	3,488.68
Total for Dept: 57801	0.00	3,488.68	0.00	3,488.68
Dept: 57810 (Turkey - Finance)				
Fund: 30079 (EUROPEAN COMMISSION)				
61305 - Salaries - IP Staff	0.00	28,948.74	0.00	28,948.74
61310 - Post Adjustment - IP Staff	0.00	4,038.04	0.00	4,038.04
62305 - Dependency Allowances-IP Staff	0.00	2,934.65	0.00	2,934.65
62310 - Contrib to Jt Staff Pens Fd-IP	0.00	10,129.45	0.00	10,129.45
62315 - Contrib. to medical, social in	0.00	1,064.84	0.00	1,064.84
62320 - Mobility, Hardship, Non-remova	0.00	2,650.36	0.00	2,650.36
62340 - Annual Leave Expense - IP	0.00	- 1,943.16	0.00	- 1,943.16
63330 - Ed Grt Incl Tryl&Allow-IP Stf	0.00	4,368.00	0.00	4,368.00
63335 - Home I eave Tryl & Allow-IP Stf	0.00	735.00	0.00	725 00

30079 (EUROPEAN COMMISSION)				
61305 - Salaries - IP Staff	0.00	28,948,74	0.00	28.948.74
61310 - Post Adjustment - IP Staff	0.00	4.038.04	0.00	4,038.04
62305 - Dependency Allowances-IP Staff	0.00	2,934.65	0.00	2,934.65
62310 - Contrib to Jt Staff Pens Fd-IP	0.00	10,129,45	0.00	10,129.45
62315 - Contrib. to medical, social in	0.00	1,064,84	0.00	1,064,84
62320 - Mobility, Hardship, Non-remova	0.00	2,650.36	0.00	2,650.36
62340 - Annual Leave Expense - IP	0.00	- 1,943.16	0.00	- 1,943.16
63330 - Ed Grt Incl Trvl&Allow-IP Stf	0.00	4,368.00	0.00	4,368.00
63335 - Home Leave Trvl & Allow-IP Stf	0.00	735.00	0.00	735.00
63350 - Reimb of Income Tax-IP Staff	0.00	1,484.44	0.00	1,484.44
63530 - Contribution to EOS Benefits	0.00	1,237.03	0.00	1,237.03
63535 - Contribution to Security	0.00	1,368.93	0.00	1,368.93
63540 - Contribution to Training	0.00	115.44	0.00	115.44
63545 - Contribution to ICT	0.00	494.84	0.00	494.84
63550 - Contributions to MAIP	0.00	16.46	0.00	16.46
63555 - Contribution to UN JFA	0.00	989.60	0.00	989.60
63560 - Contributions to Appendix D	0.00	82.51	0.00	82.51
64310 - Separations - IP Staff	0.00	461.83	0.00	461.83
65115 - Contributions to ASHI Reserve	0.00	3,282.19	0.00	3,282.19
65135 - Payroll Mgt Cost Recovery ATLA	0.00	270.36	0.00	270.36
71305 - Local ConsultSht Term-Tech	0.00	54,180.75	0.00	54,180.75
71360 - Local Consult-Security	0.00	778.10	0.00	778.10
71405 - Service Contracts-Individuals	0.00	276,269.61	0.00	276,269.61
71410 - MAIP Premium SC	0.00	122.18	0.00	122.18
71415 - Contribution to Security SC	0.00	10,140.41	0.00	10,140.41
71505 - UN Volunteers-Stipend & Allow	0.00	5,032.19	0.00	5,032.19
71510 - UNV Settling-In-Grant	0.00	225.84	0.00	225.84
71520 - UNV-Language Allowance	0.00	279.37	0.00	279.37
71535 - UNV-Medical Insurance	0.00	551.74	0.00	551.74
71540 - UNV-Global Charges	0.00	219.52	0.00	219.52



DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 2 of 5 Run Time: 07-02-2020 20:02:56

Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian		Period:	Jan-Dec (2019)	
Output #: 00108275 Municipal Service Delivery(C2)		Impl. Partner : Location :	03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem UNDP-TURKEY	
G	ovt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
74544 LINNA Combibution to accomit				
71541 - UNVs-Contribution to security	0.00	208.04	0.00	208.04
71550 - UNV-Resettlement Allowance 71565 - UNV-Natl Appoint/Sep incl Trvl	0.00 0.00	418.65	0.00	418.65
71591 - UNV_Cost_Recovery_Deployment	0.00	35.40 561.00	0.00 0.00	35.40
71592 - UNV_COST_RECOVERY_RECURRING	0.00	851.17	0.00	561.00 851.17
71605 - Travel Tickets-International	0.00	31.324.35	0.00	31,324.35
71610 - Travel Tickets-Local	0.00	3,404.16	0.00	3,404.16
71615 - Daily Subsistence Allow-Intl	0.00	71,774.63	0.00	71,774.63
71620 - Daily Subsistence Allow-Local	0.00	11,814.36	0.00	11,814.36
71625 - Daily Subsist Allow-Mtg Partic	0.00	6,271.80	0.00	6,271.80
71635 - Travel - Other	0.00	26,775.72	0.00	26,775.72
71810 - Contractual Svcs-indiv ImpPtnr	0.00	200,000.00	0.00	200,000.00
72105 - Svc Co-Construction & Engineer	0.00	6,271,029.93	0.00	6,271,029.93
72115 - Svc Co-Natural Resources & Env	0.00	205,908.57	0.00	205,908.57
72140 - Svc Co-Information Technology	0.00	9,750.00	0.00	9,750.00
72165 - Svc Co-Social Svcs, Social Sci	0.00	134,000.00	0.00	134,000.00
72215 - Transporation Equipment	0.00	1,954,014.04	0.00	1,954,014.04
72220 - Furniture	0.00	380.69	0.00	380.69
72311 - Fuel, petroleum and other oils	0.00	99.58	0.00	99.58
72315 - Food & Textile Products	0.00	535.01	0.00	535.01
72399 - Other Materials and Goods	0.00	366.73	0.00	366.73
72405 - Acquisition of Communic Equip	0.00	12,974.04	0.00	12,974.04
72415 - Courier Charges	0.00	325.90	0.00	325.90
72425 - Mobile Telephone Charges	0.00	143.72	0.00	143.72
72435 - E-mail-Subscription	0.00	89.38	0.00	89.38
72505 - Stationery & other Office Supp	0.00	985.07	0.00	985.07
72510 - Publications	0.00	94.75	0.00	94.75
72515 - Print Media	0.00	842.83	0.00	842.83
72715 - Hospitality Catering	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
72815 - Inform Technology Supplies 73125 - Common Services-Premises	0.00	236.07	0.00	236.07
73216 - Construction Cost	0.00	5,525.00	0.00	5,525.00
73405 - Rental & Maint-Other Office Eq	0.00	78,597.00 59.99	0.00 0.00	78,597.00
73410 - Maint, Oper of Transport Equip	0.00	1,255.45	0.00	59.99 1,255.45
74110 - Audit Fees	0.00	1,630.00	0.00	1,630.00
74115 - Legal Fees	0.00	42,717.60	0.00	42,717.60
74205 - Audio Visual Productions	0.00	22,355.48	0.00	22,355.48
74210 - Printing and Publications	0.00	2,793.36	0.00	2,793.36
74220 - Translation Costs	0.00	1,019.72	0.00	1,019.72
74505 - Insurance	0.00	2,779.19	0.00	2,779.19
74525 - Sundry	0.00	345.79	0.00	345.79
74596 - Services to projects -GOE	0.00	83,295.26	0.00	83,295.26
75105 - Facilities & Admin - Implement	0.00	676,881.96	0.00	676,881.96
75705 - Learning costs	0.00	65,708.16	0.00	65,708.16
76125 - Realized Loss	0.00	68,859.63	0.00	68,859.63
76135 - Realized Gain	0.00	- 204.30	0.00	- 204.30
77660 - Dep Exp Owned -Vehicle	0.00	5,915.04	0.00	5,915.04
Total for Fund 30079	0.00	10,415,279.18	0.00	10,415,279.18
Total for Dept : 57810	0.00	10,415,279.18	0.00	10,415,279.18

Dept: 57815 (Turkey - Sub-office)



DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 3 of 5 Run Time: 07-02-2020 20:02:56

Project Id: 00108446 Resilience Response to S	yrian	Period:	Jan-Dec (2019)	
Output #: 00108275 Municipal Service Deliver	y(C2)	Impl. Partner : Location :	03100 GOVT as Executing and Impler UNDP-TURKEY	n
	Govt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
Fund: 30079 (EUROPEAN COMMISSION)				
71305 - Local ConsultSht Term-Tech	0.00	4,497.78	0.00	4,497.78
71360 - Local Consult-Security 75105 - Facilities & Admin - Implement	0.00 0.00	46.66 318.11	0.00	46.66 318.11
75105 - Facilities & Admin - Implement	0.00	310.11	0.00	310.11
Total for Fund 30079	0.00	4,862.55	0.00	4,862.55
Total for Dept: 57815	0.00	4,862.55	0.00	4,862.55
Total for Output: 00108275	0.00	10,423,630.41	0.00 1	0,423,630.41
Project Total:	0.00	10,423,630.41	0.00 1	0,423,630.41

Pierre-Henri Pingeon, Partner KPMG SA, Geneva 21 July 2020

Henri Mwaniki, Senior Manager

KPMG SA, Geneva

21 July 2020

Sukhrob Khojimatov Deputy Resident Representative

	United No.			
	Resident Proj			
Signed By:		Date :	,	
Signed By:	13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 1	Date :		
	SIAND			
	Sevket Altuğ TAŞDEMİR			

Head Of Department

INITIALED FOR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES ONLY



DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 4 of 5 Run Time: 07-02-2020 20:02:56

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit: TUR10

Period: Jan-Dec (2019)
Selected Project Id: 00108446
Selected Fund Code: ALL
Selected Dept. IDs: ALL
Selected Outputs: 00108275

Govt Exp	UNDP Exp	UN Agencies Exp	Total Exp
0.00	3,488.68	0.00	3,488.68
0.00	10,415,279.18	0.00	10,415,279.18 4,862.55
	0.00	0.00 3,488.68 0.00 10,415,279.18	0.00 3,488.68 0.00 0.00 10,415,279.18 0.00





DP UN Development Programme Report ID: unglcdrp

Page 5 of 5 Run Time: 07-02-2020 20:02:59

Funds Utilization

Selection Criteria:

Business Unit: TUR10

Period: Jan-Dec (2019)
Selected Project Id: 00108446
Selected Fund Code: ALL
Selected Dept. IDs: ALL
Selected Outputs: 00108275

Project/Award: 00108446 Resilience Response to Syrian

Period : As at Dec 31, 2019

Output # 00108275 Impl. Partner :03100 GOVT as Executing and Implem	UNDP AMOUNT
Outstanding NEX advances	0.00
Undepreciated Fixed Assets	44,188.82
Unamortized Intangible Assets	0.00
Inventory	0.00
Prepayments	0.00
Commitments	342,256.69



Annex 2: Statement of Fixed Assets

Statement of Fixed-Assets for Project ID 000108275 - UNDP Turkey Country Office

AM In Service Report (ISR)

UN Development

Programme Page 1 12/05/2020 20:05 Report ID: UNAM600 Run Time: Business Unit: TUR10 Country: Category: In Service Project Type: All 1500 As of Date: 12/31/2019 Amount

	Operating Unit:	Department:	impi Agency:	Donor:	runa coae:	Project:	Profile ID:												
[Business unit	Operating Unit	Asset ID	Profile ID	Description	TAG Number	Serial Number	Model	Location	Acquisition D	In Service Date	Cost,USD	Net Book Value	Quantity	Departmei	Impl Agen	Donor	Project	Fund code
ſ	TUR10	TUR	000000000424	MTRV4	Subaru Forester 2.0D S CVT FN	UNDPPROJ007	JE1SJDLY5J6391617	Subaru Forester	TURUNGAZIA	13/08/2018	13/08/2018	25,051.93	22,094.41	1	57810	001981	10159	00108275	30079
[TUR10	TUR	000000000425	MTRV4	Subaru Forester 2.0D S CVT FN	UNDPPROJ006	JF1SJDLY5JG391433	Subaru Forester	TURUNGAZIA	13/08/2018	13/08/2018	25,051.93	22,094.41	1	57810	001981	10159	00108275	30079

\$50,103.86 \$ 44,188.82

Prepared by Administrative Associate -

Asset Focal Point:

Esra Tuncel Acikgoz

Certified by ARR-Operations -

Asset Manager:

Usame Yalcin

Approved by Resident Representative: Claudio Tomasi

Pierre-Henri Pingeon, Partner KPMG SA, Geneva

21 July 2020

Henri Mwaniki, Senior Manager

KPMG SA, Geneva

21 July 2020

